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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of

Sahara Petrochemicals Company — Joint Stock Company
Al-Jubail - Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Opinion

Wa have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sahara Petrochemicals Company {a Saudi Joint Stock
Company) ("the Company”} and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and the consolidated statement of profit or
ioss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes In equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended. and noles to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies,

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly. in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and its consolidated financizl performance
and its consolidaied cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudt Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued
by Saudi Organization for Cenified Public Accountants (*"SOCPA").

Basis for opifiion

We conducted aur audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing {ISAs) endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group tn
accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with its requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is
sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinian

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in aur audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. These matters were addressed in
the context af cur audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do nct provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters are as follows
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accounted investments
Refer to nofe 8 (d) for the accounting
refated
audit matter
As of December 31, 2018, investments in joint
ventures and associates amounted to SR 2 5 hillion
(35.6% of total assats).

During the year ended December 31, 20418, triggers
existed for impairment of Group's investment in one
of its asscoiates due to a prolonged fall in
petrochemical prices which are expected to remain
jow in the foreseeable future. Given the external
market conditions, the associate is expected o
remain loss-making. Accordingly, the Group has
carried out an exercise to reassess its recoverable
amount which has been determined as SR Nil and
the entire carrying value of the investment of SR
146.6 millicn has been fully impaired.

The Group has an another investment of 50% in
one of its joint ventures. At the date of transilion to
IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
{Le January 1, 2018), the Group had mpaired the
said investment by SR 266 2 million as the carrying
value exceeded the estimated recoverable amount
due to sustained fall in pefrochemicals prices.
During the year ended December 31, 2018,
following the resolution of a long-standing dispute
between joint venture and its supplier of feedstock
coupled with the rise in petrochemical prices
resulted in a substantial increase i joint venture's
profitability. Based on these facls, a revised
assessment of recoverable amount of Group's
investment in the said joint venture was camed out
during the year 2018 based on which management
concluded to reverse SR 213.5 million impairment
after absarption of unabsorbed losses till March 31,
2018.

We considered these as key audit matters as the
assessment of recoverable amount of investment
required estimation and judgement aboul future
production, costs and petrochemical prices as set
out in the budgets. Moreover, estimations were aiso
involved in selection of discount rate and growth
rate. Further, the amount of impaimment in
investment in associate and reversal of impairment
in investment in joint venture are material to the
consalidated financial statements taken as a whole,

PO, Box 25940, Dammaim 31461
Tal - 4+964 13 834 4311

Fax: +386 13 B3 8353
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to equity accounted investee and note 11 for the

the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit following:

- Assessing management's evaluation of faclors
underlying the impairment of investment in its
associate and and reversal of the previously
recognised impairment of investment in its joint
venture including the conclusions reached,

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the valug-in-use
model adopted for the assessment of recoverable
amount of investment in associate and joint venture;

- Checking, on sample basis, the accuracy and
appropnateness of the input data used in the
discounted cashflow modet (o supperiing
documentations;

- Assessing and challenging the reasonablepess of
key assumptions such as revenue growth rates,
discount rate and future cost trends based on our
knowiedge of the business and industry and
comparing the assumptions to the available market
and industry data and historical trend analyses;

- Testing management's sensitivity analysis and
stress test scenarios around key drivers of the cash
flow forecasts and impairment test models;

- Testng management's discounted cashflow
projections for mathematical accuracy,

- Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of
the related disclosures in Note 11 to these
consohidated financial statements.
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Proportionate consolidation of Al-Waha Petrochemicals Company

Refer to note 8 the
related disclosures.

Key audit matter

The Group holds 75% i Al-Waha Petrochemicals
Company ("&l-Waha"), Following adoption  of
International Financizl Reporting Standards {("IFRS") as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Al-Waha met
the definition of a joint venture and, as such, was
equity accounted since transition to IFRS. In October
18 2018, Al-Wwaha entered into revised off-take
agreements with Sahara Marketing Company (SMC -
fully owned subsidiary of Sahara Petrochemicals
Company) and Lyndol Bassel, (another shareholder of
Alwaha} (here-in-after referred to as marketers). As per
the agreement. Al-Waha could no longer sell its
products directly to third parties. All of its sales are now
routed through the marketers depending on the
customer's geographical focation. A re-assessment
was carried out of this joint arrangement under "IFRS
11 =~ Joint Arrangement” given the changes in facts and
circumstances, where it was assessed that Al-Waha no
longer meets the criteria of 2 Joint Venture given all of
the economic benefits of its assets are taken by its
shareholders and it is dependent on its sharehplders
purchases to generate cash in order to settle its
habtulities. Based on that, A-Waha is assessed as a
Joint Operation and accordingly ceased io be equity
accounted from October 18, 2018. As of December 31,
2018, Al-Waha Is proportionately consolidated in these
consolidated financial statements.

Ve considered this as a key audit matter because of s
significance and the degree of judgement involved in
assessing invesiment in Al-Waha as a joint operation.
The presentation of these consolidated financial
stalements changed significantly after the said
assessment and reclassification.
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How the

policy relating to prapartionate consolidation and note 1 for fhe

was in our audit

Qur audit procedures included the following:

Aszessing management judgement as to
existence of joint control  that impacts
classification of the investment in Al-Waha and
the accounting method {proportionate
consolidation} by:

Reviewing the revised agreement with the
marketers to ensure that joint control s
established 10 reclassify investment in Al-Waha
as a joint operatwon;

Independently assessing the requirements of
IFRS 11 to ensure all cnitena required to
reclassify investment in Al-Waha are met.

Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of
the related disclosures in Note 1 and 8 to these
cansolidated financial statements
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contracts with customers”

to note 8 (g} for the accounting policy refating to revenue recognition and nate 5 for the

disclosures.

matier
The Group adopted IFRS 15 “Revenue from
contracts with customers” with effect from January
1 2018 which supercedes the requirements of "IAS
18 - Revenue”

Management performed a detailed analysis of
revenue contracts to identify differences between
the requirement of the two standards, identify the
changes required to be made to exisbng accounting
policies and ine the transitio ents
and conseq changes to p and
controls required particularly in connection with the
separation of different performance obligations that
there may be wilhin a given contract. Management
also assessed the additional disciosures required fo
be made by the new standard in these consolidated
financial statements.

We identified the recognition of revenue as per
requirements of IFRS 15 as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance
indicaters of the Group and the application of IFRS
15 may require judgments and the use of significant
ASSUM the

Adoption of “IFRS 9 —~ “Financial

How was addressed in our audit

Qur audit procedures included the following:

Reviewing management detailed analysis of its
revenue streams and how the new accounting
standards impact the group;

Gaining an understanding of management's
approach to the implementation of any changes to
the accounting policy,

Qbtaining the understanding of the nature of the
revenue contracts used by the Group, tested a
sample of representative sales coniracts to confirm
our understanding and assess whether or not
managemant's application of iIFRS 15 requirements
are in accordanca with IFRS 15;

Testing the design of relevant processes established
by management to ensure appropriate recognition of
revenue,

Reviewing adequacy and appropriateness of the
Group's disclosures on IFRS 15 included in these
consolidated financial statements.

Refer to note 8]’!} B (g) and 8 (h) for the accounting policy relating to financial instruments and note 5 for the

related disclosures.

audit matter
The up IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”
with effect from January 01,
supercedes the requirements of FAS 398 “Financial
Instrumants — recognition and measurement”.

IFRS 9 addresses the ciassification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for  hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets.

The Group assesses at each reporting date
whether the financial assets carried at amorised
cost are credit-impaired. The Group’s management
has applied a simplified expected credit 108§
("ECL") model to determine the allowance for
impairment of trade receivables. The ECL model
involves the use of varigus assumplions, macro-
economic factors and study of historical trends
relating to the Group's trade receivables collection
EXpErence.

We considared this as a key audit matter due to
the judgements and estimates involved in the
credit loss

of the
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addressed in our

2018 which Our audit procedures included the following:

Reviewing management detailed analysis of impact of
[FRS @ in terms of the classification and measurement
of its financtal assets and liabitites and understood the
approach taken towards implementation;

Assessing the ECL model developed by management
by reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of
the methodology in comparson to accepted best
practice.

Testing key assumptions such as those used to
calculate the likelihood of default and the subsequent
loss on default, by comparing to historical data, We
alsa considered the incorporation of forward laoking
factors to reflect the impact of future events on
expected credit losses;

Reviewing adequacy and appropriateness of Group's
disclosure on IFRS 9 included in these consclidated
financial statements.
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Other information

Management is responsibie for the othar information. The cther infarmation comprises the information included
in the annuai repart but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report therean,
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes avaiiable and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. if. based on the work we have perfonmed, we conclude that there is a
materal misstatement of this other information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with govemance.

Responsibilities of management and Those Charged with Governance {“TCWG”) for the consolidated
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statemenis
in accordance with IFRS endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, other standards and pronouncements
endorsed by SOCPA and Regulations of Companies requirements andg for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consclidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management 15 responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, of
have no realistic alternative but to do so

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our epinicn. Reasonable assurance is @ high level of assurance, but 1s nol a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered raterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldenlify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit pracedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriale te provide a basis fer our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control

» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose af expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates
and refated disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. if we ¢onclude that a
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material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn in our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group fo cease to continue as a going

concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the cansolidated financial staterments represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the cansolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsibie for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
contral that we identify during our audit.

We alse provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasaonably be thoughl to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the maiters communigated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected io outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments in joint venture and associates
Long-term investments

Other non-current assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other current assets
Murabaha deposits

Cash and cash eguivalents

Total Current Assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total Equity

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Deferred income

Employees’ end of service benefits
Derivative financial instruments
Decomissicning liability

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Trade payables

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Dividend payable

Provision for zakat

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Note

10
1"
12
13

14
15
16
17
18

19

20

21
22
23
24
25

21
26
27
41
28

2018
(Note 1)

2,403,728
25,830
2,499,042
234,099
401,861

5,564,560

143,252

130,522
114,505

1,071,163
1,459,442
7,024,002

4,387,950
335,240
(15,006)
266,057

4,974,241

1,225,670
61,294
146,299
5,290
23,154
1,461,707

156,729
41,982
138,185
219,398
31,750
588,054
2,049,761
7,024,002

2017

126,567
20,528
3,721,942
242,384
425 209

4 536 630

37,827
775,000
813913

1,326,740
5,863,370

4,387,950
285,158
(7.341)
692,998
5,358,765

291,867

99,757
2,853

394,277

38,889
3,400
34,422

33617
110 328
504 605

5,863,370

The accompanying notes 1 through 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross loss

General and administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses

Financial income

Share of profit from jeint venture and associates
Other income / (expenses), net

Operating profit

Finance cost
Profit before Zakat

Zakat charge
Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments designated as hedge

Share of other comprehensive income / {loss)} of joint
ventures and associates

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Re-measurment loss on the employees’ end of
services benefits

Share of other comprehensive loss of joint ventures
and associates

Total other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted (Saudi Arabian Riyal)

Note

37
29

30
31

32
11
33

34

28

202

20.2

20.1
203

35

2018
{Note 1}

210,058
A73)
(21,415)
(65,286)
(7,692)
(94,393)
37,976
542,118
72,061
557,762

{25,780)
531,982

(31,160)
500,822

1,241

7,565

{10,2686)
{6,205)
(7,663)

493,157

1.14

2017

(33,087)
(33,067)
29,642
490,117
(181)
486,511

(7,632)
478,879

(34,353)
444,526

(1,218)

(5,151)

(5,922)
(292)

3,571
(9,010}

435,516

1.01

The accompanying notes 1 through 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.



SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals in thousands

Balance as at January 1, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) /
income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss) /
income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve

Dividend
Balance as at December 31,
2017

Profit for the year
Qther comprehensive income /
(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income f
{Ioss) for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve

Dividend
Balance as at Decamber 31,
2018

Other reserves

Cash Acturial
Statutor flow gain or
Share y hedge Fair value loss Retained
capital reserve  reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
4,387,950 240,705 (6.873) 8,642 - 622 021 5252345
2 - o 4 - 444526 444,526
2 - (6,367) (5,922) 3,279 - {9.010)
- {6,367) {5,922) 3,279 444 526 435516
- 44453 - - - (44,453) -
- = - - {329.086] {328,096}
4,387,950 285,158  ({13,240) 2,620 3,279 692,998 5,358,765
- s . 4 - 500,822 500,822
- B 8,808 (10,266} (6,205) - (7,665}
- - 8,806 (10,266} (6,205) 500,822 493,157
- 50,082 - - - (50,082) -
5 s " - (877,681)  (877,681)
4,387,950 335240 {4,434) (7,6486) (2,926) 266,057 4,974,241

The accompanying notes 1 through 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before zakat

Adiustment for non-cash items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Share in net income of equity accounted investees

Reversal of impairment of investment in joint ventures and associates
Impairment of investments in associates and joint ventures
Finance cost

Amortization of HOP assets

Amortization of deferred revenue

Interest income from advances to joint ventures and associates
Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Cther nan-operating income

Increase in current assels

- Inventories

- Trade receivables

- Prepayments and other current assets
Increase in current liabilities

- Trade payables

- Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Zakat paid
Finance cost paid

Employees’ end of service benefits-paid
Net cash generated from / {used in} operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Murabaha deposits

Long term investments

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates
Additions to property, plant and equipment

Additions to intangible assets

Loans advanced to a joint venture

Invesiments in joint ventures and associates

Deductions from employees long term advances
Additions to other non-current assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash generated from / {used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of proporticnate consclidation of Al Waha

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

Note

9
10
11

11,33
11,33

13
22

33
23

28

23

11

10
11
11
13

13

41

2018
(Note 1)

§31,982

52,089
2,128
(542,118)
(213,468)
146,603
25,780
2,389
{1,155)
(2,909)

4

13,855
(8,021}
7,159

31,802
113,032
76,230

(22,654)
{39,398)
166,171
{42,027)
(37,804)
(1,316)
85,024

775,000
(1,981)
345,570
(124,354)
Wl

{242,000}
30,028
{43,922)
631
738,971

{97,809)
(658,283)
{756,092)

67,803

489,347

513,913
1,071,163

2017

478,879

8,226
2,018
(490,117)

7,632
1,661

{4,539)
2
11,881
(81}
15,563

15,084

(864)
(27,725)
2,058
{36.238)
(2,566)

(1,131)
(37 875)

(475,000)
35,576
490,144
(88,698)

(10}
{27,750}

14,154
(762)

(52,346)

(144,444)
(329,096)
(473,540)
(563,761)

1,077,674
513,913

The accompanying notes 1 through 45 ferm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sahara Petrochemicals Company ("the Company”) is a Saudi Jeint Stock Company and registered in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, operating under Commercial Registration ("CR") No. 1010196710 issued in Riyadh on Jumada'l
19, 1425 H (July 7, 2004).

The Company is principally involved in investing in industrial projects, especially in the petrochemicals and
chemical fields and to own and execute projects necessary to supply raw materials and utilities.

The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 251, Riyadh 11411, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Sahara
Petrochemicals Company is referred to as “the Company’ and together with its subsidiaries as “the Group”
throughout these consolidated financials statements.

Subsidiaries

The Company helds 100% shares of Sahara Marketing Company {'SMC”) ("a subsidiary"). SMC is a limited
liability company and registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, cperating under CR No. 2055104498 issued in
Jubail on Rabi al Awal 19, 143B-H (December 18, 2016). The principle activities of SMC are wholesale of
industrical chemicals and petrochemicals, export and commercial undertakings, and marketing on behalf of third
parties. SMC has commenced its commercial operations during the year.

The Coempany holds 100% shares of Promising Business Company ("PBC") (*a subsidiary”). PBC is a single
member company and registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, operating under CR No. 2055124398 issued
in Jubail on Rabi al Thani 6, 1440-H (December 13, 2018). The principle activity of PBC is wholesale of chemicals
and fertilizers. In December 2018, PBC purchased 30% shares in Khair Inorganic Chemicals Industries Company
{"Inochem”} on behalf of the Company.

Joint operations

The Company holds 75% in Al-Waha Petrochemicals Company {"Al-Waha"). Following adoption of IFRS and as
per guidance of IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements, Sahara was assessed as having joint control with the other
shareholder, Lycndel Basell ("LYB"), in Al-Waha. Al-Waha met the definition of a joint venture and, as such, was
equity accounted since transition to IFRS. In October 2018, Al-Waha entered into revised off-take agreements
with its current marketer and signed a new off-take agreement with SMC, a fully owned subsidiary of the
Company. As per the new off-take agreements, Al-Waha could no longer sell its products directly to third parties.
All of its sales are routed through SMC and the other shareholder in Al-Waha, depending on the customer's
geographical location. A re-assessment was carried out of this joint arrangement under IFRS 11 given the
changes in facts and circumstances, where it was assessed that Al-Waha no longer meets the criteria of a Joint
Venture given all of the economic benefits of its assets are taken by its shareholders and it is dependent on its
shareholders purchases to generate cash in order to setile its liabilities. Based on that Al-Waha is assessed as a
Joint QOperation from October 2018 and accordingly proportionately consolidated and cease to be equity
accounted from the date of signing the revised off-take agreements with SMC and LYB

Equity accounted investees
The Company holds equity interests of 50% in a joint ventures, Sahara and Ma'aden Petrochemicals
(“SAMAPCO"), which is primarily involved in manufacturing of petrochemical products.

The Company also holds equity interests in following associates which are primarily involved in manufacturing of
petrochemical products:
Effective interest %

Tasnee and Sahara Clefins Company ("TSOC") 3255
Saudi Acrylic Acid Company ("SAAC") 43.16
Khair Inorganic Chemicals Industries Company {"Incchem”) 30.00

In 2013, the Group started discussions / negotiations with Saudi International Petrochemical Company
(SIPCHEM) for Proposed Merger (the Merger) between the twa companies. In 2014, the Group called off its
decision because implementing the Merger through a structure acceptable to both companies and available under
the regulatory framework at that time was not available. However, in March 2018, the Group again started
discussions with SIPCHEM in relation to the Proposed Merger in the light of the recent changes in the regulatory
framework
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Based on the above discussion, on October 3, 2018 the Group entered in to a non-binding memoerandum of
understanding with SIPCHEM (the "MOU") to effect a business combination. Under the terms of the MOU and in
order to implement the proposed business combination, SIPCHEM, following the execution of the binding
implementation agreement, will make an offer to all shareholders of the Group to acquire all their shares in the
Group. SIPCHEM will issue, and each shareholder of the Group will receive, 0.8356 new SIPCHEM shares for
each share of the Group held by them. The business combination will result in SIPCHEM having an increased
share capital of 733,333,332 shares, of which 366,666,666 shares, representing 50% of the increased share
capital, will be held by the shareholders of the Group and 366,666,666 shares, representing 50% of the increased
share capital, will be held by SIPCHEM shareholders. The Exchange Ratio and the resulting ownership split has
been agreed as a result of an extensive mutua! due diligence and valuation exercise. Pursuant to the MOU, the
Group and SIPCHEM will centinue to advance discussions in relation to the proposed business combination and
work towards entering into a binding implementation agreement not later than February 28, 2018 unless the
parties agree to extend such period.

Subsequently on December 5, 2018, the Group entered into a legally binding agreement with SIPCHEM to
implement a business merger of equals by way of SIPCHEM making a recommended offer to acquire all of the
issued shares in Group in exchange for the issue of new shares in SIPCHEM.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the
Saudi Organization of Certified Public Accountants ("SOCPA") (here-in-after referred to as “IFRS").

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, with exception of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and derivative financial instruments that are measured
at fair value and employees’ end of service benefits obligation which is measured at present value using Projected
Unit Credit Method {PUCM)

4. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SR) which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Group. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise
stated.

5. PRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADQPTED BY THE GROUP

IFRS 15 - 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This has replaced JAS 18 which covered contracts for goods and services and IAS 11 which covered
construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control
of a good or service transfers te a customer - so the notion of contral replaces the existing notion of risks and
rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

The Group has adopted this standard with effect from January 1, 2018. There are no material impacts of
adoption of the said IFRS on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. For accounting policy, refer note
8 to these financial statements.

IFRS 9 - ‘Financial Instruments'
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments" that replaces 1AS 39
“Financial Instruments”. Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting

The Group has complied with the requirements of IFRS 9 in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. The impacts of adopting IFRS 9 on the Group are as follows:
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Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 establishes a principles-based approach to determining whether a financial asset should be measured
at amortized cost or fair value, based on the cash flow characteristics of the asset and the business model in
which the asset is held. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured
at amortised cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive income ("FVOCI"} and Fair Value through Profit
or Loss ("FVTPL") The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business
model in which a financial asset is managed and its cantractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates
the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS
9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are
never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Group's accounting policies related
to financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments. For an explanation of how the Group classifies and
measures financial instruments and accounts for related gains and losses under IFRS 9, refer Note 8.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under
IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities as at January 1, 2018. The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial
assets at January 1, 2018 relates.

Original
Original New carrying New carrying
classification under Classification amount amount
Financial assets IAS 39 under IFRS 9 under lAS 39 underIFRS 9
FVOCI (equity)
Long-term investments  Available for sale election 200,384 200,384
Long-term investments  Loans and receivables Amonized cost 42.000 42,000
Murahaba Deposits Loans and receivables Amortized cost 775,000 775,000
Cash and bank
balances Loans and receivables Amortized cost 513,913 513913
Advances to equity
accounted investees Loans and receivables Amortized cost 118,410 118,410
Due from related parties  Loans and receivables Amortized cost 17,311 17,311
Other receivabies Loans and receivables Amortized cost 15,948 15,948

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss' (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt
investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are
recognised earlier than under IAS 39. For assets in the scope of the IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment
losses are generally expected to increase and become more volatile.

Based on the Group’s assessment, the introduction of the "expected credit loss” model for the assessment of
impairment of financial assets held at amortized cost is not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
results as at January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2018, given the low exposure to counterparty default risk as
a result of the credit risk management processes that are in place.

The Group has elected to adopt the new general hedge accounting model in IFRS 9. This requires the Group
to ensure that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy
and to apply a more qualitative and forward-looking approach ta assessing hedge effectiveness.

The adoption of the new standard would not change the amounts recognized in relation to existing hedging
arrangements as the Group has taken the accounting policy choice, permitted under the IFRS § transition
requirements, to continue to account for all hedges under IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

For accounting policy, refer note 8 to these financial statements.
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¢ IFRS 16 - ‘Leases’
The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of leases. This standard will replace:
- 1AS 17 - 'Leases’
- IFRIC 4 — ‘Whether an arrangement contains a lease'
—  SIC 15 - 'Operating leases - Incentives’
- SIC 27 - ‘Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease'
Under [AS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease {on balance sheet) and
an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting
future lease payments and a 'right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has in¢luded an
optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can
only be applied by lessees.

Under IFRS 18, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideraticon.

Mandatory application date / Date of adoption by the Group
Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after January 1, 2019

The Group plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019, using the modified retrospective approach.
Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earings at 1 January 20189, with no restatement of comparative information The Group
is currently assessing the impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

e Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - clarifies how a company accounts for
increasing its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business.
- If a party maintains (or obtains) joint control, then the previously held interest is not premeasured.
- If a party obtains control, then the transaction is a business combination achieved in stages and the acquiring
party premeasured the previously held interest at fair value.

IAS 12 Income Taxes - clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on
financial instruments classified as equity) are recognised consistently with the transactions that generated
the distributable profits — i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - clarifies that the general borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs
excludes only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under development or
construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance qualifying assets that are now ready for
their intended use or sale or any non-qualifying assets — are included in that general pool. As the costs of
retrospective application might outweigh the benefits, the changes are applied prospectiveiy to borrowing
costs incurred on or after the date an entity adopts the amendments.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments - seeks to bring clarity to the accounting for income tax
treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax authorities. The key test is whether it's probable that the tax
authority will accept the Group’s chosen tax treatment

Other amendments
The following amendments to standards are not yet effective and neither expected to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements:
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation {Amendments to IFRS 9)
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28)
- Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Seftlement (Amendments to (AS 19)
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The preparation of consolidated financia! statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are as
foliows:

i} Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for calculating depreciation.
This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets and physical wear and tear.
Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and change in depreciation charges, if any, are
adjusted in current and future periods.

ii) Joint arrangement

The Group is party to the SAMAPCO (50% shareholding), a joint arrangement. The Group has joint control over
this arrangement as unanimous consent is required from all parties to the agreements to direct the activities that
significantly affect the returns of the arrangement, such as annua! production budgets, capital expenditures,
incurrence of indebtedness, election of key management team members, approval of pricing policies and
admission of new parties. The classification of this joint arrangement as a joint venture is driven by the rights and
obligations of the parties arising from the arrangement rather than the legal form of the arrangement. SAMAPCO
meet the definition of a joint venture as they are structured as limited liability company and provide the Group and
the party to the agreement with rights to its net assets under the arrangement. The party is not substantially the
only source of cash flows contributing to the continuity of the operations of the joint venture.

iii) Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-current assets other than
intangible assets and that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting
date Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount should not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
assets or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognized on intangible assets and available for sale securities are not reversible,

iv) Impairment of investments in equity-accounted investees

An impairment loss in respect of investments in equity-accounted investees is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with the carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss,
and is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

v} Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (“ECL") associated with its debt
instruments as part of its financial assets, which are carried at amortised cost. The ECL is based cn a 12-month
ECL and a life time ECL. The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECLs that resuits from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Howaver, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. For trade
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receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised.

vi) Provision for slow moving inventory items

The management makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items. Estimates of net realizable
value of inventaries are based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates are made. These estimates
take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly related to events occurring subsequent to the reporting
date to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of year.

vii} Employees’ end of service benefits

The cost of employees’ end of service benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
invalves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to
the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date The
parameter most subject to change is the discount rate In determining the appropriate discount rate, management
considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation with at least an ‘AA’ rating or above, as set by an internationally acknowledged
rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit
spreads are removed from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do
not represent high quality bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend te change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future
salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia.

viii) Provisions

By their nature, provisions are dependent upon estimates and assessments whether the criteria for recognition
have been met, including estimates of the probability of cash cutflows Management's estimates related to
provisions for environmental matters are based on the nature and seriousness of the contamination, as well as
on the technology required for clean up. Provisions for litigation are based on an estimate of the costs, taking into
account legal advice and other information presently available. Provisions for termination benefits and exit costs,
if any, also involve management's judgement in estimating the expected cash outflows for severance payments
and site closures or other exit costs. Provisions for uncertain liabilities involve management's best estimate of
whether cash outflows are probable.

ix) Provision for zakat

The Group is subject to zakat in accordance with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT") regulations.
Zakat computation involves relevant knowledge and judgment of the zakat rules and regulations to assess the
impact of zakat liability at period end. This liability is considered an estimate until the final assessment by GAZT
is carried out until which the Group retains exposure to additional zakat liability.

The significant accounting policies adopted and consistentiy applied, except those mentioned in note 5, to all
periods presented are as follows:

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its 100% owned
subsidiaries (SMC and PBC) for the year ended December 31, 2018 and proportionate consolidation of a joint
operation {75% of Al-Waha) for the three months period ended December 31, 2018.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the Parent the Group All material intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between SMC, PBC, Al-Waha and the Company are eliminated in full or proportionate
basis on consolidation.
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Business combination

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the
Group. The cost of acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured
at fair value at the date of acquisition, and amount of any non-controlling interest in the aquiree. Transaction costs
are expensed as incurred during the year and included in the general and administrative expenses.

The consideration transferred does net include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships
Such amounts are generally recognized in consolidated profit or loss.

Goodwili is initially measured at cost {being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interest) and any previous interest held aver the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair vaiue of the net assets acquired in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the group re-assess whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all
the liabilities assumed and review the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the re-assessment still resuits in @ excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment loss. For the purpose of
impairment testing of goodwill acquired in the business combination, it is allocated to each of the group's cash
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets and
liabilities of the aquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash
generating unit retained.

Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized in
consolidated profit or loss immediately.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consalidated financial statements fram
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

The gains or losses resulting from sale of shares in subsidiaries, when the Group continues to exercise control
over the respective subsidiary, are booked in the reserve for the results of sale / purchase of shares in
subsidiaries.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangements, have right
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating the the arrangement. The Group has classified its interest
in Al-Waha as joint operations which is proportionatly consolidated in the financial statements

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of items of property, plant and
equipment. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised and included in the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of
the cost for a qualifying asset during the construction period when:

. expenditures for the asset are being incurred,
. borrowing costs are being incurred; and
. activities necessary for its intended use are in progress.

The capitalisation period begins on the date of approval of the investment project and ends with the completion
of the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale.
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Depreciation is charged to profit and foss items under the consalidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of individual items of property, plant
and equipment. The estimated useful lives of assets for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Years
Buildings and ieasehold land improvements a3
Plant, machinery and equipment 2-25
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3-10
Vehicles 4

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any, and is not depreciated until the asset is brought
into commercial operations.

Leasehold land improvements are amortized on a straight line basis over the sharter of its useful life or the term
of the lease.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Maintenance and normal repairs which do not materially extend the estimated useful life of an asset are charged
to profit and loss items under the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income as
and when incurred.

Turnaround costs - Planned turnaround costs are deferred and amortized over the period until the date of the
next planned turnaround which is usually within 2 to 3 years. Should an unexpected turnaround occur prior to the
previously envisaged date of planned turnaround, then the previously unamortized costs are immediately
expensed and the new turnaround costs are amortized over the period likely 1o benefit from such costs.

Spare parts having useful life of more than 1 year have been capitalized as part of plant, machinery and equipment
and depreciated over remaining useful life of the plant.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is comprised of major components having different useful lives,
each component is recognised as a separate item of property, plant and equipment. The carrying amount of each
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each reporting period. If expectation
differs from previous estimate, the changes shall be accounted for prospectively.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost upon initial recognition. Foilowing initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed 1o be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amertization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible asset.

The usefu! life of an intangibie asset with a definite life is reviewed regularly to determine whether there is any
indication that its current life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life assessment
is made on a prospective basis Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the aggregated CGU level.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognizing an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit and loss items under the
cansolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Software costs
Expenditure {0 acquire computer software and licenses are capitalized and amortized using the straight-line
method over the useful life of five to twenty years

Gooawill
Goodwill arising en the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Asscciates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Joint
ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual
arrangements and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions. Associates and
joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recagnised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition change in the group’s share of the investee’s net assests.
Group recognise share of profits or losses of the investee in its profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

If the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joint venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. The interest in an associate or a joint
venture is the carrying amount of the investment in the associate or joint venture determined using the equity
method together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture. After the Group's interest is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a
liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the assaciate or joint venture subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equais the share of
losses not recognised.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting palicies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recaverable. An impairment loss is recognised under
profit and loss in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for the amount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Goodwill
On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as follows:

Goodwill relating te an associate or a joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
Amortisation of that goodwill is not permitted

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment is included as income in the determination of the Group's share of the associate or
joint venture’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Classification of financial assets depends on the Group's business model for managing its financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows. The Group classifies its financial assets as:

financial assets measured at amortised cost, or

financial assets measured at fair value.
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Gains or losses of assets measured at fair value will be recognised either through profit or loss or Other
Comprehensive Income ("OCI") in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group initially recognises financial assets on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets are
recognised initiaily on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at their fair value plus transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Subseqguent measurement

Debt instruments
The Group recognises three classifications to subsequently measure its financial instruments:

Amortised cost
Financial assets heid for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments

are ed t Aganor debt in ent sub ntly
nd n rel  nship, is re in the or loss the
ed. | these financial assets is included in finance income using

the effective interest rate method.

Trade receivables which are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows
representing solely payments of principal and interests are measured at amartised cost.

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (*FVOCI”)

Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in the profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in QCl, is reclassified from equity to the profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
incomefexpense.

For investments in the equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on the whether the group
has made an irrecoverable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity instrument at FVQCI.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVPL")

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for subsequent recognition at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and which is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised and presented net in the profit
or lass in the peried in which it arises.

A financial asset or a part of a financial asset is de-recognised when:

+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or:
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without materia! delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and
either:
- The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
- The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses ("ECL") associated with its financial
assets, which are carried at amortised cost or FVOCI. The ECL is based on a 12-month ECL and a life time ECL.
The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECLs that results frem default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL For trade receivables the Group
applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised.

Derivative financiai instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are

subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent

changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the

nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

+» hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedges)

» hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly
probable forecast transactions {cash flow hedges), or

* hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions.

The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a
non-current asset or fiability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months: it is classified
as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading
derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the hedge ne longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified under either of the below two classes:
Financial liabilities at FVPL; and
» Other financial liabilities measured at amontised cost using the EIR method

All financial liabilities are recognised initially when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions and
obligations under the financial instrument. The liabilities are recorded at fair vaiue, and in the case of loans and
payables, the proceeds received net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at FVPL continue fo be recorded at fair value with changes being recorded in the consclidated
statement of profit or loss.

For other financial liabilities, including loans and borrowings, after initial recognition, these are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company pricr to the end of financial
period which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 60 days of recognition.
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They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method.

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligatiocn under the liability is settled or discharged. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange ar modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is disclosed in the consolidated statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset recognised amaunts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Other receivables include advances to suppliers, receivables from employees, accrued profit on Murahaba
deposits and other such receivables which are not ‘trade’ receivables. Other receivables are stated at amortized
cost which generally corresponds to their face value. A provision against doubtful debts is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivabies. Such provisions are charged to the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and reported under "General and administrative expenses”. When an account receivable
is uncollectible, it is written-off against the provision for doubtful debts. Any subsequent recovery of receivable
amounts previously written off is credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
Income,

Inventories, including raw materials, finished goods and cansumables {spares) are valued at the lower of cost i.e.
historical purchase prices based on the weighted average principle plus directly attributable costs (primarily duty
and transportation}, or the net realizable value.

Purchase cost comprises of a) The purchase price of the inventories; and b) Landed costs components which
typically include import duties and other taxes if applicable, transportation costs, handling costs and other directly
attributable costs

Conversion costs include costs directly related to the units of production, such as direct labour, sub-contracted
work and expenses of direct production cost centres.

Abnormal inventory losses due to quality or other issues and gverheads incurred during unplanned maintenance
/ shut down year are excluded from inventory cost. The allocation of overheads at year end for the purpose of
inventory valuation are based on the higher of normal capacity or actual producticn for the year Costs are
assigned to individua! items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale (such as marketing, selling and distribution).
Appropriate provisions are made for slow moving and redundant inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Group has established a statutory reserve by the appropriation
of 10% of net profit until the reserve equals 50% of the share capital. However.the sharehalders of the Group, in
its annual general assembly held in April 2017, approved the change of percentage of statutory resereve from
50% to 30% to align with the requirements of the Regulations of Companies and the Group has already made
amendments to the Articles of Association This reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

23



1)

m})

SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

Advances received from SAMAPCO, an associate, relating to usage of certain facilities are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred revenue and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
contract.

i} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating leaves, air fare, child
education allowance, furniture allowance that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the
end of the year in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting year and are measured at amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled The liabilities are presented as current employees' benefit obligations in consolidated statement of
financial position.

ii) Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides its employees with end of service benefit scheme calculated in accordance with Saudi
Arabian labour regulations. Defined benefit liability with respect to employees' end of service benefits is
determined based on actuarial assumptions as the present value of the defined benefit cbligation using the
projected unit credit method (PUCM). Actuanal gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they
occur in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent pericds. Re-
measurements are not reciassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The liability is calculated; as the current
value of the vested benefits to which the employee is entitled, should the employee leave at the reporting date
Payments are based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service, as stated
in the labour law of Saudi Arabia.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
+ The date on which the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate ta the net defined benefit liability. The Group recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation in the consolidated of profit or loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-sefvice costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routing settlements.
» Net interest expense or income

iii) Employees’ home ownership program

The Group has an employees’ home ownership program called Sahara home ownership program (SHOP) under
which eligible Saudi employees have the opportunity to buy residential units constructed by the Group through a
series of payments over a particular number of years. Ownership of the houses is transferred upon completion of
full payment.

Costs relating to SHOP are recognized as a non-current prepaid employees benefit expense at time the
residential units are allocated to the employees and are amartized over the period during which employees repay
such residential unit costs.

iv) Vehicles to executive employees

The Group grants eligible employees a Group owned vehicle up to a specific value. The benefit is provided to
employees against their services for a fixed number of years. The employee also has an option to opt for a higher
value vehicle and the difference in value is contributed by the employee. The vehicle shall remain the property of
the Group for four years after which it will be transferred to the employee. The Group’s Human Rescurce policy
governs the arrangement with the employee and may define conditions under which such vehicle can be
transferred to employee.

The Group’s production of petrochemical products through construction and management of its petrochemical
plant gives rise fo obligation for plant closure and dismantling (collectively referred to as “decommissioning
obligations”). The provision for decommissioning is discounted to its present value and capitalised as part of
property, plant and equipment and then depreciated as an expense over the expected life-of-plant

24



p)

q}

r)

s)

SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

A provision is recognized if, as a result of past events, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision
is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment
loss on assets associated with that contract.

Zakat

The Group is subject to Zakat in accordance with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (' GAZT") regulations.
Provision for zakat for the Group is charged to profit and ioss Additional amounts payable, if any, at the finalization
of final assessments are accounted for when such amounts are determined. The Group withholds tax on certain
transactions with non-resident parties in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including dividends payments to the foreign
sharehelder, as required under GAZT regulations.

Direct sales - Marketers/Off takers

Revenue is recognized upon delivery or shipment of products, depending upan the contractually agreed terms,
by which the control of the goods have been transferred to marketers/off takers and the Group has no effective
control or continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership over the goods.

Marketers/off takers obtain control of the products when the gocds are delivered or shipped to them (i.e. at the
time of placing the goods on the vessels) and they have accepted the goods by signing the bill of lading. Revenue
is recognized at that point in time. The portion of sales made through marketers/off takers are recorded at
provisional prices agreed with such marketers/off takers at the time of shipment of goods, which are later adjusted
based on actual selling prices received by the marketers/off takers from their final customers, after deducting the
costs of shipping and distribution (settlement price). The Group estimates the variable consideration as the most
likely amount based on available market information and recently published prices of petrochemical products.
The Group includes in the transaction price some or all of an amount of variable consideration only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the associated variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Direct sales - Final customers
The Group recognises revenue when control of the products sold, transfers to the customer and considering the
applicable shipping terms.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. Revenue arrangements are assessed against
specific criteria to determine whether the Group is acting as a principal or agent.

When a contract with a customer provides a right of return of the good within a specified period, the Group
accounts for the right of return when requested by the customer and contractual conditions are met.

Any other income is recognized when the realization of income is virtually certain and earned by the Group on its
own account (acting as a principal). Furthermore, interest, and dividends are recognised on the following basis:

* Interest is recognised using effective interest method; and
= Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

i} Costof sales
All expenses are recognized on an accrual basis Operating costs are recognized on a historica! cost basis
Production costs and direct manufacturing expenses are classified as cost of sales. This includes raw material,

25



t)

uj

SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

direct labor and other attributable overhead costs. Other costs such as selling costs are recorded as selling and
distribution expenses while all remaining other costs are presented as general and administrative expenses.

ii} General and administrative expenses

These pertain to operaticn expenses which are not directly related to the production of any goods or services.
These also include allocations of general overheads from the company, which are not specifically attributed to
cost of sales or selling and distribution expenses.

iii) Selling and distribution expenses

These include any costs incurred to carry out or facilitate all selling activities at the Group. These costs typically
include freight charges, logistics cost and marketing fee. These also include allocations of certain general
overheads from the Parent Company.

Allocation of overheads between cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, and general and administrative
expenses, where required, is made on a consistent basis.

Interim dividends are recorded as liability in the period in which they are approved by the Board of Directors. Final
dividends approved by the shareholders of the Group are recorded in the consolidated financial statements in the
pericd in which are approved.

Leases

i) Fimance leases

Leases of property and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other short-term and long-term payables. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cast is charged ta the profit or logs aver the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.

ii) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are nat transferred to the Group as
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under cperating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the transiation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised as a profit or loss item in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings (if any) are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within
other income or cther expenses. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

A business segment is a group of assets, operations or entities:

= engaged in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components;

» the results of its operations are continuously analysed by Chief Operating Decision Maker (the CODM) in order
to make decisions related to resource allocation and performance assessment; and

» for which financial information is discretely available
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The Group’s president is considered to be the CODM. Segment results that are reported to the president include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. The details
of Group's segments are presented in note 37 to these consolidated financial statements.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability;

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ahility to generate economic
benefits from the asset’s highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would utilise the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unchservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directiy or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Group
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to relevant documents. The Group alsc compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained
above.
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9.1

Buildings and Furniture, Capital
leasehold land fixtures and Vehicles work in Total
2017 improvements office equipment proqaress
Cost:
At January 1, 2017 106,844 35024 2,820 386,830 531,518
Additions 8 2,090 86,602 88,698
Transfers in / {out) 16,189 {16,189)
Transferred to other non-
current assets (441,315)  (441,315)
Disposals (7) (870) (877)
At December 31, 2017 123,039 37,107 1,950 15,928 178,024
Accumuliated
Depreciation:
At January 1, 2017 (17,769) (24,365) (1,972) (44 1086)
Charge for the year (3.570) {4,101 (555) (8,226)
Disposals 5 870 875
At December 31, 2017 (21,339) (28,461) (1,657) {51,457}
Net Book Value
As at December 31, 2017 101,700 8,645 293 15,928 126,567
Allocation of depreciation
Note 2018 2017
Cost of sales 29 44 851
General and administrative expenses 30 7,238 8,226
Total 52,089 8,226

i) Administrative building and operational facilities of the Group are constructed on land leased under a
renewable lease contract with the Royal Commission for Jubail and Yanbu (the "Royal Cammission”}. The
lease term is for an initial period of 30 years commenced in 2006 and is renewable by mutual agreement of
the parties.

fiy During the year, Al Waha (Joint Operation "JO") has carried out major overhaul of the plant which has been
transferred from capital work in progress to plant and machinery during the year. Turnaround cost is
depreciated over a period of 2 years from the date of transfer to plant, machinery and egquipment.

iii) Capital work in progress represents the projects which are not yet completed and under progress at year end.
These include various small projects which mainly includes management of change, firewater network upgrade

and addition of a new bagging line.

iv) At December 31, 2018, property, plant and equipment with net book value of SR 1,105 million (2017: SR nil)
were mortgage as collateral to certain credit facilities {Refer note 21).

v} The cost of fully depreciated assets which are currently in use amounts to SR 18.0 million (2017: SR 7.5
million)
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10.

11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2018 Softwares
Cost:

At January 1, 2018 33,542
Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al

Waha {note 1) 4172
Additions for the year 1
Transfers from property, plant and

egquipment 5,501
At December 31, 2018 6
Accumulated Amortization:

At January 1, 2018 (13,014}
Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al

Waha (note 1) (2,544)
Charge for the year i2,128)
At December 31, 2018 (17,686)
Net Book Value:

As at December 31, 2018 25,530

Goodwill *

300

300

300

Deferred cost

1,086

(1,086)

(1,086)

Total

34,628

4,172
3

5,501
602

(14,100)
(2,544)

{2,128)
{18,772)

25.830

*During 2018, the Group acquired 100% shareholding of Promising Business Company {"PBC") against a
consideration of Saudi Riyal 1 million. The fair value of net assets of PBC were Saudi Riyal 0.7 million at

acquisition date.

2017 Softwares Goodwill
Cost:
At January 1, 2017 33,532
Additions for the year 10
At December 31, 2017 33,542
Accumulated Amortization:
At January 1, 2017 (10,995)
Charge for the year {2,019
At December 31, 2017 (13,014)
Net Book Value:
As at December 31, 2017 20,528
10.1 Allocation of amortization
Note
Cost of sales 29
General and administrative expenses 30
Total
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOQCIATES
Note
Investment in Joint ventures 11.1
Investment in associates 11.2

30

Deferred cost

1,086

1,086

(1,088)

{1,086)

2018

204
1,924
2,128

2018

349,055
2,149,987
2,499,042

Total

34,618
10
34,628

(12,081)
(2,019)
(14,100)

20,528

2017

2019
2,019

2017

1,723,999
1997 943
3,721,842
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11.1 Investment in Joint Ventures (JVs)

Note 2018 2017

Investment in JVs:
Al Waha Petrochemicals Company 181111 1,668,046
Sahara & Ma'aden Petrochemicals Company 11.1.2 291,956

291,956 1,668,946
Advances to a JV:
Sahara & Ma'aden Petrochemicals Company 11.1.3 57 099 55053

349,055 723,998

11.1.1 Al Waha Petrochemicals Company (Al Waha)

The Group has a 75% interest in Al Waha, a limited liability company and registered in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, is engaged in producticn and sale of propylene and polypropylene.

In 2018, Al-Waha investment converted from a JV to a Joint Operations ("JO") based on agreements with
marketers. Refer to note 1. The Group's interest in Al Waha is accounted for using the equity method till
September 30, 2018, after that Al Waha has been proportionately consolidated.

The tables below provide summarised financial information for Al Waha. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of Al Waha and not the Group's share of those amounts. They
have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method if any, including
fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting pclicy as needed.

2018 ** 2017

Non-current assets 3,118,665
Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) 720,251
Cash and cash eguivalents 497 264
Total current assets 1,217,515
Non-current liabilities (1,702,170)
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade payables and

provisions) (161,020)
Other current liabilities {339.300)
Total current liagilities (500,320)
Net Assets * 2,133,690

* The Group’s share of net assets in Al Waha is not exactly equal to the percentage of shareholding to the share
of net assets due to Zakat and tax adjustments.

** Figures of Al-Waha as at December 31, 2018 was not shown as the Group proportionately consolidates Al-
Waha from quarter 4, 2018.

Reconciliation to carrying amount:

Note 2018 2017
Balance as at January 1 1,668,946 1,617,492
Share of profit for the year 209,492 208,463
Dividends received 38 (114,435) (156,505)
Share of other comprehensive income 5,633 (504)
Recognized as a joint operation ** 1 {1,769,636)
Balance as at December 31 1 948
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Summarized statement of profit or loss of Al Waha:

2018 2017
Revenue 1,833,978 1,869,795
Cost of sales 1,353,560 1,330,952
Depreciation and amortisation 170,922 219,757
Finance cost 66,048 96,698
Interest Income 4,246 8,110
Zakat and income tax 18,221 26,806
Profit before zakat and income tax 292,697 296,619
Profit after zakat and income tax 274,476 269,813
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 7,509 (672}
Total comprehensive income 281,985 269,141

“** Figures of Al-'Waha are for the period from January 1, 2018 to September 30, 2018

The Group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in the JV as at December
31, 2018,

Al-Waha had contingent liability for bank guarantees issued in the normal course of the business amounting to
Saudi Riyals 317.4 million as at December 31, 2017.

The capital expenditure contracted by Al-Waha but not yet incurred till December 31, 2017 was Saudi Riyals
36.1 million.

During the nine months pericd ended September 30, 2018, Al-Waha has declared and paid dividends amounting
to Saudi Riyals 150.C million (2017: Saudi Riyals 200 0 miliion).

11.1.2 Sahara and Ma'aden Petrochemical Company (SAMAPCQO)

The Group has a 50% interest in SAMAPCO, a limited hability company and registered in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, is engaged in production and sale of Caustic soda, Chlorine and Ethy! Dichloride.

The Group's interest in SAMAPCO is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

The tables beiow provide summarised financia! information for SAMAPCO. The information disclosed reflects
the amounts presented in the financial statements of SAMAPCQ and not the Group’s share of those amounts.
They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method if any,
including fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting palicy as needed.

2018 2017

Non-current assets 2,482,217 2,584,058
Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) 312,480 274,973
Cash and cash equivalents 41 672 80.305
Total current assets 152 355,278
Non-current liabilities (1,887,762) (1,996,800)
Current financial liabilities {(excluding trade payables

and provisions) {226,072) (166,724)
Other current liabilities {139,254) {291,376)
Total current liabilities {365,326) {458,100)
Net Assets 583,281 484,436
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At the date of transition to IFRS (i.e. January 1, 20186), the Group impaired its investment in SAMAPCO by Saudi
Riyals 266.2 million as the carrying value exceeded the estimated recoverable amount due to sustained fall in
petrochemical prices.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, foliowing resolution of a long-standing dispute with a supplier of its
Ethylene feedstock, SAMAPCUO's cost of production reduced substantially. This reduction in production cost was
coupled with the rises in petrochemical prices which returned SAMAPCO to profitability. A revised assessment of
recoverable amount of SAMAPCO was carried out which indicated that the entire Saudi Riyals 266.2 million
impairment should be reversed. The future cash flows were discounted at a rate of 12% (January 1, 2016: 12%)
in arriving at the recoverable amount of SAMAPCO.

The following table shows the amounts recognized in other income / {expenses) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and cther comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018 in relation to reversal of
impairment in SAMAPCO and recognition of previously unabsorbed profits and losses for pericds up to march
31, 2018.

Reversal of impairment of investrment 266,215
Unabsorbed losses for the year ended December 31, 2016 {32,341)
Unabsorbed losses for the year ended December 31, 2017 {22,461)
Unabsorbed other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017 272
Unabsorbed profits for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 1783
Net impact in cther income / {expenses) due to reversal of impairment 213,468

Reconciliation to carrying amount

Note 2018 2017
Balance as at January 1
Reversal of impairment 33 213,468
Share of profit 47,640
Increase due to valuation of interest free loan 30,848
Balance as at December 31 291,956

Summarized statement of profit or loss of SAMAPCO:
2018 2017

Revenue 766,197 545 973
Cost of sale 549,570 524,932
Depreciation and amortisation 125,130 125,372
Finance cost 80,213 72,745
Financial income 1199 402
Zakat 2,000
Profit / (loss) before zakat 100,845 (44,922)
Profit / (loss) after zakat 98,845 (44,922)
Other comprehensive income 5486
Total comprehensive income / (loss) 98,845 (44,376)

The Group has provided a financial guarantee to Saudi Industrial Development Fund {"SIDF"} on behalf of
SAMAPCO against long-term borrowings from SIDF.

SAMAPCO has a contingent liability for bank guarantees issued in the normal course of the business amounting
Saudi Riyals 20.2 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017: Saudi Riyals 20.2 million).

The capital expenditure contracted by SAMAPCO but not yet incurred till December 31, 2018 was approximately
Saudi Riyals 15.9 million {2017: Saudi Riyals 4 5 million).
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11.1.3 Advances to SAMAPCO

The Group has provided an interest free long term advance to SAMAPCQ which is subordinated to certain term

loans obtained from SIDF. The movement is as follows:

Note

Balance as at January 1

Advances given during the year

Fair value adjustment

Interest income for the year 36

Balance as at December 31

11.2 Investment in associates

Nocte
investment in associates:
Tasnee and Sahara Olefins Company 1121
Saudi Acrylic Acid Company 1122
Khair Inerganic Chemical Industries Company 1123
Advances to associates:
Saudi Acrylic Acid Company 1124

11.2.1 Tasnee and Sahara Olefins Company (TSOC}

2018

55,053

2,046
57,099

2018

1,843,766

242,000
2,085,766

64,221
2,149,987

2017

34,142
27,750
(8,538)

1699
55,053

2017

1,734,802
199,984

1,934,586

63,357
1.997,843

The Group has a 32.55% interest in TSOC, a Saudi closed joint stock company, registered in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, engaged in production and sale of Propylene, Ethylene and Palyethylene

The Group's interest in TSQC is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial

statements.

The tables below provide summarised financial information for TSQC. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of TSOC and not the Group's share of those amounts. These
have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method if any, including
fair vaiue adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policy as needed.

Non-current assets

Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current financiai liabilities (excluding trade payables)
Other current liabiiities
Total current liahilities

Minority interests
Net Assets

34

2018

6,899,706

318,023
515.559
833,582

{1,206,688)
(137,752)
(476,827)
(614,579)

{212,152)
5,699,869

2017

6,770,547

167,991
595,007
762,998

(1,484,161)
(113,503)
(221,600)
(335,103)

(318,158)
5 123
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Reconciliation to carrying amount:

Note 2018 2017
Balance as at January 1 1,734,602 1,797,836
Profit / {loss) from loan waiver direcily charged to equity 43,546 (43,546}
Share of profit for the year 294,821 314,473
Dividends received 36 (231,135) (333,639
Share of other comprehensive income / {loss} 1,932 (528)
Balance as at December 31 1,843,766 1,734,602

Summarized statement of profit or loss of TSOC:

2018 2017
Revenue 808,419 821,334
Cost of sales 693 109 733,256
Finance cost 60,642 60,440
Zakat and income tax 14,005 17,918
Profit before zakat 1,070,686 966 140
Profit after zakat 1,056,681 948,222
Other comprehensive income / (loss} 5,942 (1,622}
Total comprehensive income 1,062,623 946,600

The Group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in TSOC as at December
31, 2018.

TSCC has a contingent liability for bank guarantees issued in the narmal course of the business amounting
Saudi Riyals 251.0 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017 Saudi Riyals 251 0 million).

The capital expenditure contracted by TSOC but not yet incurred till December 31, 2017 was approximately
Saudi Riyals 13.0 million {December 31, 2017: Saudi Riyals 16.4 million).

During the year ended December 31, 2018, TSOC has declared and paid dividends amounting to Saudi Riyals
1,104.0 million {(2017: Saudi Riyals 1,025.0 million).

11.2.2 Saudi Acrylic Acid Company (SAAC)

The Group has a 22% direct and 21.16% indirect interest in SAAC through TSOC, SAAC is a limited liability
company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and is engaged in the production and sale of Acrylic Acid
and its related products.

The Group's interest in SAAC is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

During 2018, triggers existed for impairment of Group's investment in SAAC due to a prolonged fall in
petrochemicals prices which are expected to remain low in the foreseeable future. Given the external market
conditions, SAAC is expected to remain loss-making. As such, the recoverable amount has been determined to
be SR Nil and the entire ¢arrying value of the investment has been fully impaired. This impairment loss is
recognized in other income / (expenses) in the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 2018.

The tables below provide summarised financial information for SAAC. The informaticn disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of SAAC and not the Group’s share of thase amounts. They have
been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity methed if any, including fair
value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policy as needed.
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2018 2017
Non-current assets 2,472,797 2,677.613
Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) 277,886 138,829
Cash and cash equivalents 269,744 316,623
Total current assets 547,630 455,452
Non-current liabilities {1,206,688) (1,921,639)
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (137,752) (113,503)
Other current liabilities (364.,482) (88,904)
Total current liabilities (502,234) (202,407)
Net Assets 1,311,505 909,019

Reconciliation to carrying amount

2018 2017
Balance as at January 1 199,984 189,812
(Loss) / profit from loan waiver directly charged to
equity (43,546) 43,546
Share of loss for the year (9.835) (32,825)
Impairment loss for the year {146,603)
Share of other comprehensive ioss (549)
Balance as at December 31 194,984

Summarized statement of profit or loss of SAAC:

2018 2017
Revenue 808,419 821334
Cost of sales 693,109 733,256
Finance cost 60,642 {60,440)
Zakat and income tax 3,702 {7,922}
Loss befere zakat {308,311) (170,679}
Loss after zakat {312,013) (178,600}
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 9,139 (2,495)
Total comprehensive loss (302,874) (181,095}

The Group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in SAAC as at December
31, 2018.

SAAC has a contingent liability for bank guarantees issued in the normal course of the business amounting
Saudi Riyals 251.0 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017: Saudi Riyals 251.0 million).

The capital expenditure contracted by SAAC but not yet incurred till December 31, 2018 was approximately
Saudi Riyals 13.0 million {December 31, 2017: Saudi Riyals 16.4 million).

11.2.3 Khair Inorganic Chemical Industries Company (Inochem)
The Group has a 30% interest in Inochem, a limited liahility company and registered in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. It will engaged in production and sale of Dense Sodium Carbonate {Soda Ash}, Calcium Chloride and
Calcium Carbonate. The commercial operations are not yet started.
The Group's interest in Inochem is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements.

36



SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Rivals in thousands

The tables below provide summarised financial informatien for Inochem. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of Inochem and not the Group's share of those amounts. They
have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method if any, including
fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policy as needed.

2018 2017
Non-current assets 53,654
Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) 4,910
Cash and cash equivalents 734,028
Total current assels 738,938
Non-current liabilities (3,824)
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) -
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Net Assets 748,426
Reconciliation to carrying amount:
2018 2017
Group’s share in net assets 224 528
Add: goodwill recognized on investment 17 472
Balance as at December 31 242,000
Summarized statement of profit or loss of Inochem
2018 2017
Zakat and income tax 18,426
Loss before zakat 13,790
Loss after zakat 32,216
Other comprehensive loss 8,973
Totaf comprehensive loss 32,225

The Group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in Inochem as at December
31, 2018.

Inochem has a contingent liability against pre-incorporated expenses and bank guarantees issued in the normal
course of the business amounting Saudi Riyals 125.0 million and 11.0 million respectively, as at December 31,
2018.

11.2.4 Advances to SAAC

The Group has provided long-term advance to SAAC which carries commission, and is subordinated to certain
term loans obtained from commercial banks.

Note 2018 2017
Balance as at January 1 63,357 60,517
Interest income for the year 36 864 2,840
Balance as at December 31 64,221 63,357

37



SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals in thousands

12. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Note 2018 2017
At fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI"Y 121 167,128 200,384
At amortized cost 12.3 66,971 42,000
234,099 242 384
12.1 Financial assets at FVOCI:
Note 2018 2017
Listed securities
Riyad REIT Fund 58,875 72,975
Unlisted securities
Mutual fund units 108,253 127,408
12.2 167,128 200,384
12.2 Re-conciliation of fair value measurement of financial assets at FVOCI:
2018 2017
As at January 1, 200,384 241,882
Purchases 12,710 39,424
Sales {35,700) {75,000)
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income {10,266} {5,922)
As at December 31, 167,128 200,384

12.3 At amortized cost

This includes investments in various Sukuks which earn profit at prevailing market rates which are based on

Saudi inter-bank offer rate. Break-up is as follows;

Date of Number of certificates Amount
maturity 2018 2017 2018 2017
OREIDCO Sukkuk Limited August 2020 200,000 200,000 20,000 20,000
Saudi Industrial
Petrochemicals Company June 2021 120,000 120,000 12,000 12,000
First Abu Dhabi Bank March 2023 14,000 - 5,253 -
Bank Juliug Baer June 2021 14,000 - 5,177 -
Bank Al-Bilad August 2026 50,000 50,000 5,000 5,000
Bank Al- Jazira June 2026 50,000 50,000 5,000 5,000
Bidaya Home Finance Cctober 2019 50,000 - 5,000 -
Ma'aden Phosphate Company  February 2025 50,000 . 5,000 -
Tawreeq SCF Investment 12 April 2019 11,830 4,541 -
66,971 42,000
13. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Note 2018 2017
Long-term prepaid employees benefits 13.1 401,860 402,382
Others - 22 827
401,860 425,209

13.1 These are costs related to house construction, site development and infrastructure associated with the

home ownership program. The break-up is as follows:
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13.1 Amortization is charged to general and administrative expenses during the year. See note 30

14.

2018

At January 1, 2018

Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al-

Waha (note 1)

Additions during the year

Charged to affiliates during the year (note
38)

Amortization during the year

Recoveries

Current portion of employees receivable

At December 31, 2018

2017

Additions during the year

Transferred from property, plant and
equipment

Charged to affiliates during the year (note
36)

Amortization during the year

Recoveries

Current porticn of employees receivable
Disposals

At December 31, 2017

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods
Spare parts — not held for sale

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Related parties balances
Third parties balances

Impairment

Recoverable
from employees

386,859

1,394

(30,028)
{2,527)
355,698

Recoverable
from employees

9,363

397,410

(14,154)
(2.028)
(3,732)

386,859

Note

36

30

39

Deferred site
cost

15,523

12,818
43,922

(23.712)
(2,389)

46,162

Deferred site
cost

764
43,905

{27,485)
{1,661)

15,523

2018

25,467
39,152
78,633

143,252

2018

77,478
53,409
130,887

(365)
130,522

Total

402,382

14,212
43,922

(23.712)
(2,389)
(30,028)
(2,527)
401,860

Total

10,127
441,315

(27,485)
(1,661)
(14,154)
(2,028)
(3,732)
402,382

2047
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15.1 Aging analysis of trade receivables

Neither past
due nor 31-60 B1-90 91-120
Total impaired <30days days days days »120 days
December 31, 2018 130,887 115,568 9,408 588 20 712 4,691

December 31, 2017

16. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Note 2018 2017

Prepayments 5,407 3,193
Due from related parties 36 53,020 17,310
Value added tax receivable 17.141
Advances to suppliers 14,527 1,375
Advance income tax 5,307
Receivable from employees 4,823 3,029
Accrued profit on Murabaha deposits 4,613 4,065
Current portion of employees receivable for HOP 131 2,527 2,028
Cash margin for letter of guarantee 1,971
Others 5,169 6 827

114,505 37,827

17. MURAHABA DEPOSITS

Murabaha deposits were placed with the local commercial banks having contractual maturities more than three
months and yield financial income at prevailing market rates.

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note 2018 2017
Cash in hand 14 1
Cash at banks 131,149 38912
Murabaha deposits 18.1 940,000 475 D00

18.3 1,071,163 513,913

18.1 Murabaha deposits were held with local commercial banks and yield financial income at the prevailing
market rates having criginal maturities of less than three months.

18.2 All cash and cash equivalents are non-conventional

18.3 The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows at
the end of the financial year. The table below provides details of amounts placed in various currencies.

2018 2017
SAR 1,056,091 513 909
UsD 14,356 4
EUR 643 -
AUD 73

1,071,163 513,913
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19. SHARE CAPITAL

As at December 2018, the share capital of the Company was Saudi Riyal 4,387,950,000 (2017: Saudi Riyal

4,387,950,000) divided into 438,795,000 shares (2017: 438,795,000 shares) of Saudi Riyal 10 each.

20. OTHER RESERVES

Note 2018 2017
Finanical asset at fair value through OCI resevers 201 {7,646) 2,820
Cash flow hedge reserve 202 {4,434) 13,240}
Acturial gain or loss reserve 203 {2,926) 3278
{15,006) (7,341}

20.1 This represents cumulative gain / {loss) on the financial asset at fair value through OCI reserves.

2018 2017

As at January 1, 2,620 8,542
Remeasurements gains / (losses) recognised in other

comprehensive income {10,266) (5,922)
As at December 31, (7,646) 2,620

20.2 During 2016, the Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with commercial banks to manage the
exposure of volatility in interest rates, for a notional amount of SR 749.5 million with no upfront premium. This
represented 40% of the total ican balance.

As at December 31, 2018, these interest rate swap contracts had negative fair values of Saudi Riyals 5.3 million
(2017: negative fair value of Saudi Riyal 2.9 million).

The Group has also recorded its share of the gains in fair values of derivative financial instruments designated
as hedge from its joint venture and associates amounting to Saudi Riyal 7 & million (2017: fair value loss of Saudi

Riyal 5.2 million).

2018 2017
As at January 1, {13,240} {6,873)
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments
designated as hedge 1,241 (1,216)
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments
designated as hedge from associates and joint ventures 7,565 (5,151)
As at December 31, (13,240}
20.3 This represents the cumulative actuarial gain or loss booked on re-measurement of defined benefit
obligations.
2018 2017
As at January 1, 3,279
Actuarial loss on re-measurement of defined benefit
obligations (6,205) (292)
Actuarial gain on re-measurement of defined benefit
chiigations from associates and joint ventures 3,571
As at December 31, {2,926) 3,279
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LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Note 2018 2017
Islamic loan under ljara arrangement 1,211 1,104,750
Loan from a commercial bank 21.2 291,687 330,556
1,396,417 330,556
Less: unamortized upront fee 1,21.3 (14,018)
Total borrowings 1,382,399 330,556
Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows
Note 2018 2017
Current portion shown under current liabilities 156,729 38,889
Non-current portion shown under non-current liabilities 1,225,670 291,667
Total borrowings 21.4 1,382,399 330,556

21.1 Islamic {oan under ljara arrangement

During 2015, the Company signed an ljara facilty agreement with a syndication of commercial banks (the
"lessor”). The proceeds from this facility were used to repay Saudi Industrial Development Fund (“SIDF") loan,
Public Investment Fund ("PIF") loan and Advances against Islamic facilities obtained for the construction of the
plant. This facility represents an Islamic mode of financing amounting to Saudi Riyals 1,964 million through a sale
and lease back of certain plant facilities. The loan bears financial charges at Saudi Inter Bank Offered Rate
("SAIBOR"} plus a specified margin and is repayable in twenty four un-equal semi-annual installments
commencing from June 30, 2015.

21.2 Islamic lean from a commercial bank for HOP

During 2013, the Group signed a lcan agreement of Saudi Riyals 500 millian with a commercial bank to finance
the empioyee housing scheme for the Group's employees and its joint arrangements - Al Waha and SAMAPCO.
The Group has drawn the entire facility as at December 31, 2016. In 2017, the repayment schedule has been
changed with the agreement of the Bank. The lcan bears financial charges at Saudi Arabian Inter Bank Offered
Rate ("SAIBOR"} plus a specified margin and is repayable in twenty equal semi-annual instalments commencing
after three years from the draw down date.

21.3 Unamortized upfront fees

Note 2018 2017
Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al Waha 1 14,576
Amortization far the year {558)
Balance as at December 31 14,018
21.4 Maturity profile of long term borrowings:
2018 2017
2018 38,889
2019 156,729 38,889
2020 156,729 38,888
2021 156,729 38,889
2022 156,729 38,888
2023 156,729 38,886
2024 200,919 38,889
Thereafter 411 853 58 333
Total 1,396,417 330,556
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22. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents the income earned by Al-Waha {joint operation) from SAMAPCO for usage of shared
facilities. It has been amortized acceording to the tenure defined in the agreement.

Effect of proporticnate consolidation of Al Waha
Less: income recoghized during the year

Balance as at December 31

Presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Current portion under current liabilities
Non-current portion under non-current liabilities

Cumulative recenciliation of deferred income is as follows

Advance income received
Less: cumulative income recognized to date

23. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Balance as at January 1

Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al Waha

Charged to consolidated statement of income

- Current service cost
- Interest cost

Charged to consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income:
Re-measurements on cbligation:

Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions

- Experience adjustments

Benefits paid during the year
Adjustment / transfers during the year

Balance as at December 31

The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows;

Discount rate per annum used for calculation of interest cost
Discount rate per annum used for calculation of obligation

Note

1

Note

27

Note

Salary increment rate per annum used for calculation of obligation

Mortality rates (from mortality table)
Withdrawal rates per annum
Retirement Assumption (Age in years)

43

2018

67,074
{1,155)
65,919

2018

4,625
61294

65,919

2018

92,516
{26,587)
65,919

2018

99,757
22,382

13,856
g

6.205
6,205
(1,3186)
897

146,299

2018

3.80%
3.80%
4.20%
A49-52
6.00%
60

2017

2017

2017

2017

85,567

11,881
3.230
16,111

(2,197)
2.489
292
(1,131)
(82)

99,757

2017

3.80%
3.80%
4.20%
A49-52
6.00%
60
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The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 10 years.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions for year ended

December 31 is as follows:

Discount rate + 100 bps
Discount rate - 100 bps
Salary increase + 100 bps
Salary increase - 100 bps

24, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2018

132,265
162,981
163,252
131,757

2017

90,654
111,854
112,037

90,307

The Group entered into interest swap contracts with commercial banks to manage the exposure of volatility in
interest rates, for a notional amount of SR 748.5 million with no upfront premium. At December 31, 2018, these
interest rate swap agreements had negative fair values of Saudi Riyal 5.3 million (2017: negative fair value of

SR 2.9 million).
25. DECOMISSIONING LIABILITY
Note
Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al Waha 1
Interest cost: Unwinding of liabiiity
Balance as at December 31
26. TRADE PAYABLES
Note
Due to related parties 36

Third parties payables
Retention payable
Others

27. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Note

Accrued purchases

Accrued expenses

Advances from related parties 36
Advances from customers

Current portion of deferred revenue 22
Accrued finance cost

Others

28. ZAKAT

2018

22,942
212

23,154

2018

10,428
28,644
1,540
1,370
41,982

2018

62,368
18,578
28,181
8,775
4,625
779
13,888

2017

2017

1,385
1,540
475

3,400

2017

8,312
25,760

350

34,422

The Group is subject to Zakat in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in accordance with Saudi Arabia fiscal regulation.

a) The Group calculates and pays Zakat on individual companies' level. Summary of the items included in Zakat

base for consolidated purpose, for the year ended December 31, is as follows:
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Neon-current assets

Inventory- spare parts

Nan-current liabilities

Shareholders' equity at beginning of year
Net profit before zakat

b) Movement in zakat provision
Note

At beginning of the year
Effect of proportionate consolidation of Al Waha 1

Charged during the year
Under / (over) provision for the prior years
Charge for the year — net

Paid during the year
At end of the year

c) Outstanding assessment and zakat status:

2018

5,564,560
78,633
1,461,707
5,358,765
531,982

2018

33,617
9.000

22,763
8,397
31,160

(42,027)
31,750

2017
4,536,830
394 277
5,252 345
478 879

2017
35,500
37.000
(2,647)
34,353

(36,238)
33,617

The Group has received the zakat assessments for the years through 2009-2015. The status is as follows

(i) Forthe years 2009 to 2011, GAZT calculated an additional zakat liability of Saudi Riyals 3.4 million for the
Group. Although the Group paid this additional zakat amount to GAZT in full in 2017, it disputed the
calculation and claimed a refund of Saudi Riyals 1.6 million from GAZT for these years. During the year,
GAZT approved the claim and allowed a net-off against settlement for the assessment years 2012-15.

(i) For the years 2012 to 2015, GAZT calculated an additional zakat liability of Saudi Riyals 11.9 million for
the Group which was later revised to SAR 10.1 millicn. The Group agreed and settied the dispute by
paying this amount in full after deducting refund of Saudi Riyal 1.6 million for the assessment years 2009
to 2011. There is no further outstanding liability with respect to this assessment.

The Group has received Zakat certificate for the year ended 2018 and 2017, however, GAZT has not yet carried

out an assessment for the said years.

29. COST OF SALES
Note

Raw materials, consumables and change in finished

products

Utilities

Employees cost

Depreciation 9.1
Amottization 10.1
Maintenance cost

Others
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2018

142,370
12,377
11,628
44,851
204
17,659
2,384

231,473
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30. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Note
Salaries, wages and benefits
Maintenance
Professional services 301
Depreciation 9.1
Amortization 101, 131
Computer-related
Rent
Board of Directors fees and expenses 36
Donations
Others
Shared service expenses charged to Al Waha (JV) 302 36
Shared service expenses charged to Al Waha (JO) 302, 36
Shared service expenses charged to SAMAPCO 30.2, 36

2018

184,460
29,657
27,890

7,238
4,313
7,389
5,993
4,594
1,050
11725
284,309

(99,193)
(14,738)
(105,092)
65,286

2017

163,513
28,927
7,474
8226
3,680
9,396
1,749
2,534
1,090
14 439
241,028

(121,197)

(86,764)
33,067

30.1 This includes meger related expenses amounting to Saudi Riyal 8.0 millien (2017: nil).Also refer to note 1

30.2 Represents expenses related to salaries and wages of several departments which has been incurred by the
Group and charged back to Al Waha & SAMAPCO on the basis of agreed percentage in the shared services

agreements.

31. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Note
Freight
Logistics and packing cost
Sates commission
Others
32. FINANCIAL INCOME
Note

Financial income from Murabaha deposits

Financial income from loans to affiliates 36
Financial income from long-term investments

Dividend income

33.
Note
Reversal of impairment of investment in a joint venture 11.1.2
Impairment of investment in an associate 11.2.2
Reversal of long over-due liabilities
Amortization of deferred income 22

Income from ieasing of certain shared facilities
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Foreign exchange losses

Others
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2018
1,835
4,410
1,441

6
7,692

2018

28,412
2,909
3,130
3,525

37,976

2018

213,468
(146,603)
1,534
1,155
293

(4)
(5,671)
7,889
72,061

2017

2017

20,446
4,539
2,708
1949

28,642

2017

(2)
(31)
(148)
(181)
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34. FINANCE COST

Note 2018 2017
Interest on icans 18,578 3,576
Interest cost on lease of platinum 893
Amortization of upfront fees 558
Interest cost on employees’ end of service benefits 23 4,518 3,230
Others 1,233 826
25,780 7,632

35. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earings per share for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 have been computed by dividing the net
profit after zakat for each year by weighted average number of 438,785,000 shares outstanding during such
years.

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The related parties consist of the shareholders, their subsidiaries, affiliates and the Group’'s Board of Directors.
Significant transaction with related parties was as follows:

a) The Group has a service level agreement with Al Waha and SAMAPCQC for the provision of accounting,
treasury, maintenance, human resources, information technology (ERP/SAP) procurement and related
services and other general services.

b) The Group has a long-term marketing agreement with Lyondell Basell and its associates for the sale of
propylene outside GCC.

c) The Group has a marketing consultancy agreement with Lyondell Basell and its assaciates for the sale of
propylene inside GCC.

d) The Group has a long-term supply agreement with Saudi Ethylene and Polyethylene for the supply of
ethylene.

e} The Group has a service level agreement with Al Waha and SAMAPCO to manage the house ownership
project for their employees.

fy The Group has obtained a loan from a commercial bank to finance the house ownership program for the
Group's employees and its joint arrangements - Al Waha and SAMAPCO. The Group allocates finance cost
to Al Waha and SAMAPCO under service level agreement.

g) The Group has provided leng term advance to SAAC which carries commission, and is subordinated to
certain term loans cobtained from SIDF.

h) The Group has provided interest-free long term advance to SAMAPCO which is subordinated tc certain term
loans obtained frem SIDF

i} The Group charges interest to SAAC in relation to the subordinated loan mentioned in (g)
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year
ended December 31, 2018, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed

by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year by examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates
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j} During the year ended December 31, the Group had the following significant transactions with its related
parties:

Related party Relationship Nature of transaction 2018 2017
Shared services cost
charged to Al Waha 14,738
Cost and expenses
Al Waha charged by Al Waha 71
Petrochemical . ) Transfer of HOP assets to
Company (Al Jointoperations 4y 5,651
Waha) Allocation of HOP finance
cost to Al Waha 8,326
Purcahase of polypropylene
from Al Waha 15,662
Shared services cost
charged to Al Waha 99,193 121,197
Cost and expenses
opana charged by Al Waha 569 760
c Joint venture Dividends received 114,435 156,505
ompany (Al T fer of HOP
Waha) ransfer o assets to
Al Waha 15,088
Allocation of HOP finance
cost to Al Waha 6,216 48612
Shared service cost
charged to SAMAPCO 105,092 86,764
Loan injection - 27,750
Saf)ara and Interest income 2,046 1,699
Ma'aden Transfer of HOP assets to
getrochemlcal Joint venture SAMAPCO 18,061 12,417
ompany . i
(SAMAPCO) Allocation of HOP finance
cost to SAMAPCO 6,861 3,801
Cost and expenses
charged to SAMARPCO 2,693
Tasnee and
Sahara QClefins Associate
Company Dividends received 231135 333,639
Saudi Acrylic
Acid Company Associate Interest income 863 2,840
Dividends paid 36,000
Lyondel Basell Affiliate Consultancy fee 456
Sale of polypropylene 154,933
Saudi Ethylene Purchase of ethylene by Al
and Afiliate Waha (Joint operation) 8,149
Polyethylene Purcahse of propylene by
Company Al Waha (Joint operation) 1,990
Board of Key management Board of Directors fees and
Directors Personnel expenses 4,594 2,534
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ity Remuneration for the year ended 31 December of key management can be detailed as follows:

2018 2017
Short-term employee benefits 10,552 9,368
Long-term benefits 1,795 2,230
12,347 11,598

iii} The above transactions resulted in the following balances with related parties as at December 31:

a) Trade receivables

Note 2018 2017
Lyondell Basell and its associates 15 77,478 E
b} Prepayments and other current assets
Note 2018 2017
Sahara and Ma'aden Petrochemicals Company 51,083 9,524
Al Waha Petrochemicals Company {Joint operations) 1,937 -
Al Waha Petrochemicals Company {JV} B 7,786
16 53,020 17,310
¢) Trade payables
Note 2018 2017
Al Waha Petrochemicals Company {Joint operations) 5,221 -
Saudi Ethylene and Polyethelene Company 4,996 -
Lyondell Basell and its associates 211
26 10,428 g
d} Advances from related parties:
Note 2018 2017
Sahara and Ma'aden Petrochemicals Company 21,398 -
Al Waha Petrochemicals Company (Joint operations) 6,783 -
27 28,181 -

37. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has the following operating segments:

Manufacturing, which includes manufacturing of petrochemicals products {(mainly polypropylene) by its joint
operation.

Marketing, which includes sales of petrochemicals products (mainly polypropylene) by Sahara Marketing
Company (SMC).

Corporate, which includes enabling functions and support activities.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements.

Prior to classification of Al Waha as a joint operation and commencement of commercial operations of SMC,
CODM used to periodically assess the performance of the Group as a whole and allocate resources to the
business as one unit and, as such, no separate operating segments were identified for financial reporting
purposes. Consequently, segment reporting as required by IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ were not disclosed for
year ended December 31, 2017. The CODM, however, periodically receives summarized financial performance
of all of its equity accounted investees. Please refer to Note 11 where this summarized financial performance
information has been disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidation

Manufacturina Marketina Corporate eliminations Total

Revenue
External customers 188,015 22,043 210,058
Inter-segment 15,662 33,550 (49,212

203,677 22,043 33,550 (49,212) 210,058
Gross (loss) / profit (40,235) 1,161 33,550 {15,891) {21.415)
Operating (loss) / profit (53,961) {204) {24 667) {15,561} {94,393)
Depreciation and ameortization 46,603 10,003 56,606
Share of profits from
associates and joint ventures 471,588 70,530 542118
Finance income 5,789 32,187 37,976
Finance cost 18,183 - 7.597 25,780
(Loss) / profit before zakat (70,830) {204} 547 747 54,969 531,982
Totat assets 2,949,039 229 7,094,478 {3,019,744) 7,024,002
Total liabilities 1,363,064 23,778 2,120,237 (1,457,318) 2,049,761
Capital expenditures 101,662 229 72,037 (5,651) 168,277

Disaggregation of revenue based on geographical information and segments

Consolidation

Manufacturing Marketing Corporate eliminations Total
Revenue
Foreign countries 154,933 154,933
Saudi Arabia 48,744 22,043 33,550 (49,212) 85,125
203,677 22,043 33,550 (49,212) 210,058

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
38.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, other price risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management
framework.

The Group's risk management practices are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controis, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management practices
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.

a} Market risk

(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or

receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Group is exposed te currency risk arising from vanous currency exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States Dollar (USD), Australian Dollar (AUD}, Euro {EUR) and Great Britain Pound (GBP)

Currently, the Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts receivable from / payable to
foreign entities. The Group's exposure to currency risk is as follows:

2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents — USD 3,829
Long-term investments — USD 2,800
Trade receivable — USD 17,572
Advances to suppliers — USD 2,052
Trade payables — USD {5,664)
Net exposure — USD 20,589
Cash and cash equivalents — AUD 28
Trade recetvable — AUD 4,291
Net exposure — AUD 4,319
Cash and cash equivalents — EUR 150
Advances to suppliers — EUR 677
Trade payables — EUR (5)
Net exposure — EUR 822

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 1% against the USD, AUD & EUR
with all other variables heid constant, the impact on post zakat profit for the year would have been Saudi Riyals
1.2 million {2017 nil) lower / higher, mainly as a result of exchange losses / gains on translation of foreign
exchange denominated financial instruments

{ii) Commodity risk

The Group is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations of the price of various inputs to production, mainly
propane, propylene, ethylene, natural gas and utilities Propane and propylene prices are relatively co-related to
sales price of the final product, Polypropylene.

The Greoup's associates and joint arrangements are also exposed to the impact of market fluctuations of the price
of various inputs to production, mainly propane, ethylene, salt, natural gas and utilities. These have been
separately disclosed in their respective financial statements

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group's significant interest bearing financial instruments
was:
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2018 2017

Fixed rate instruments:
Financial assets
Murabaha deposits (Cash and cash eguivalents) 940,000 475,000
Murabaha deposits 775,000
Financial liabilities
Borrowings {552,960} (132,222)
Net exposure 387,040 1117778
Financial assets
Long-term advances to SAAC 64,221 63,357
Long-term investments (excluding FVOCH 66,971 42 000

131,192 105,357
Financial liabilities
Borrowings {829,439) (198,334}
Derivative financial instrument {5,290) (2,853)
Net exposure {703,537) (95,830)

The group entered into interest rate swap arrangement to mitigate the risk of fluctuation of market interest rates.
Refer to note 24.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one panty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk of the Group arises from depasits with banks, trade receivables,
long-term advances to equity accounted investees, long-term investments, due from related parties and other
receivables.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group's established pelicy, procedures and contro! relating to
customer credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Qutstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance.

The requirement for an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The Group does not hold collateral as security The Group evaluates the concentration
of risk with respect to trade receivables as normal, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and
industries and operate in largely independent markets.

At 31 December 2018, the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows:

2018 2017
Foreign countries 77.479
Saudi Arabia 53,043
130,522

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury department in
accordance with the Group’s palicy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties
and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group's
Board of Directers on an annual basis The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty’s failure to make payments.
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(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure except for derivative financial
instruments. The maximum exposure to ¢credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,071,163 513,913
Murabaha deposits 17 775,000
Trade receivables 15 130,522
Long-term investments 12 234,099 242,384
Long-term advances to equity accounted investees 11 121,320 118,410
Due from related parties 16 53,020 17,311
Other receivables 16 41,550 15 848

1,651,674 1,682,966

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.
The Group believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a
significant number of counter parties.

{ii) Credit quality of financial assets
The credit guality of financial assets (mainly bank balances and investments in mutual funds) that are neither past
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information

about counterparty default rate:

Short- Long- Rating

Institution / Rating term term agency 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Saudi British Bank A1 P-1 Maody's 198,322 133,046
Saudi Investment Bank A3 P-2 Moody's 150,027 180,015
Bank Saudi Fransi Al P-1 Moody's 300,378 100,417
Emirates NBD A3 P-2 Moody's 200,010 100,010
Arab National Bank A2 A Cl ratings 420,000
Gulf International Bank B.S.C P-2 Baa1 Moody's 100,000
Al Awwal Bank A3 P-2 Moaody's 1,073 20
National Commerciat Bank F1 A- Fitch 957 362
Riyad Bank F2 A- Fitch 281 30
Al Rajhi Bank A1 Moody's 116 12
Alinma Bank BBB+ Fitch 5
Total cash and ¢ash equivalents 1,071,149 513,912
Murahaba deposits
Gulf International Bank B.S.C P-2 Baa1 Moody's 525,000
Al Awal Bank A3 P-2 Moody's 250,000
Total Murabaha deposits 775,000

Due to the Greup's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter
parties on their obligations to the Group. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

(iii) Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual

obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.
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In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group's policies and procedures include specific guidelines
to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and
managed accordingiy.

¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adeguate amount of committed credit facilities. At December 31, 2018, the Group had Saudi Riyals 1,110.1 million
available borrowing limits from commercial financial instiutions and Saudi Riyais 1,071.1 million cash and bank
balances.

The table below analyzes the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Carrying Less than One to five More than
amount one year years five years
As at December 31, 2018
Long-term borrowings 1,396,417 156,729 626,916 612,772
Trade payables 41,982 41 982
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 138,195 138,195
Dividend payable 219,398 219,398
1,795,992 556,304 626,916 612,772
As at December 31, 2017
Long-term borrowings 330,556 38,889 155,656 136,111
Trade payables 3,400 3,400
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 34,422 34 422
368,378 76,711 155,556 136,111

38.2 Fair value estimation

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is uncbservable.

The following table presents the financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
At fair value through OCI
December 31, 2018 58,875 108,253 167,128
December 31, 2017 72,975 127,409 200,384
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
December 31, 2018 5,290 5,290
December 31, 2017 2,853 2,853
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
ocecurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value a financial
instrument are observable, those financial instruments are classified under level 2. If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market data, the financial instrument is classified under level 3. The Group has
no such type of financial instruments as on December 31, 2018,

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objeclive evidence at each reporting date.

Financial instruments by categories

{i) Financial assets
At fair value At fair value through
At amortized through the profit other comprehensive
Financial assets cost and loss income Total

December 31, 2018

Cash and cash equivalents 1,071,163 1,071,163
Trade receivables 130,522 130,522
Long-term investments 66,971 167,128 234,099
Advances to equity accounted investees 121,320 121,320
Due from related parties 53,020 53,020
Other receivables 41,550 41,550
1,484,546 167,128 1,651,674
December 31, 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 513,913 - - 513,913
Murabaha deposits 775,000 - - 775,000
Long-term investments 42,000 - 200,384 242 384
Advances to equity accounted investees 118,410 - - 118,410
Due from related parties 17,311 - - 17,31
Othe receivables 15,948 - - 15,948
1,482,582 - 200,384 1,682,966

(ii) Financial liabilities
At amortized At fair

cost value Total
As at December 31, 2018:
Long-term borrowings 1,396,417 1,396,417
Trade Payables 41,982 41,982
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 138,195 138,195
Dividend payable 219,398 219,398
Derivative financial instrument 5,290 5,290
1,795,992 5,290 1,801,282
As at December 31, 2017:
Long-term borrowings 330,556 330,556
Trade Payables 3,400 3,400
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 34,422 34,422
Derivative financial instrument 2 853 2 853
368,378 2,853 371,231

55



SAHARA PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals in thousands

38.3 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and other measures commensurating to the

circumstances. The Group moenitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratic.

The gearing ratios at 31 December were as follows:

2018 2017
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,396,417 330,556
Less: cash and cash equivalents {1,071,163) (513,913)
Net debt 325,254 (183,357)
Total equity 5,193,639 5,358,765
Net debt to equity ratio (in times) 0.06 0.03
39. CONVENTIONAL AND NON-CONVENTIONAL FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Components of consolidated statement of financial position
2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents - non-conventional
Current Murabaha (including fixed term deposits) 940,000 475,000
Current accounts (excluding fixed term deposits) 131,149 38,912
1,071,149 513,912
Murabaha deposits — non-conventional - 775,000
Borrowings - non-conventional 1,382,399 330,556
Compenents of consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
2018 2017
Financial income — non-conventional
Murabaha with banks (time deposits) 28,412 20,446
Long-term investments 3,130 2,708
Dividends 3,525 1,949
35,067 25,103
Financial income - conventional
Advances to equity accounted investees 2,909 4,539
Finance cost — non-conventional
Interest expenses related to loans from commercial banks 15,680 2,127
Finance cost — conventional
Interest expenses related to interest rate swaps 2,898 1,449
Interest expense related to employees' end of service benefits 4,518 -
Interest expenses related to platinum lease rentals 893 -
Interest expenses related to amonrization of upfront fee 558 -
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40. OPERATING LEASES

The Group has various operating leases for the land, pipeline facilities, computer eguipments, machinery and car
rentais. The leases, except land and pipeline facilities, are for initial pericd of one year with options to renew the
leases after lease terms. Lease payments are either fixed or increasing annually to reflect market rentals. Rental
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to SAR 7.6 million (2017: SAR 5.4 million).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are, as follows:

2018 2017
Within one year 3,227 244
After one year but not more than five years 12,914 975
More than five years _ 41,374 2,813
57,515 4,032

Also refer note 6.

41. DIVIDEND
The sharehelders in their meeting held on April 19, 2018 approved dividends amounting to SR 438.8 million (SR
1.0 per share) for the year ended December 31, 2017, which have been fully paid in April 2018 (2017: SR 329.1
millien - 0.75 per share declared and paid in Aprit 2017).

The Beard of Directors approved interim dividends amounting to SR 219.4 million (SR 0.5 per share) on August
8, 2018 , which have been fully paid in September 2018.

The Beard of Directors approved interim dividends amounting to SR 219.4 million (SR 0.5 per share) on December
5, 2018, which have been fully paid in January 2019.

42. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Group has a contingent liability for bank guarantees issued in the normal course of the business amounting
Saudi Riyals 236.4 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017: Saudi Riyals 7.4 million).

The capital expenditure contracted by the Group but not yet incurred till December 31, 2018 was approximately
Saudi Riyals 49.6 million {2017: Saudi Riyals 8.9 million).

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the opinion of management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the year ended December
31, 2018 that would have a material impact on the financial position of the Group as refiected in these consolidated
financial statements.

44. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2017 figures to conform to the current year's presentation.

45. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the board of directers of the Group on February
2019 G.
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